A

ANTELOPE
VALLEY

Distance Education and Technology Committee | Tuesday, November 12, 2019

Agenda

3:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m., L-201

Type of Meeting: Regular
Please Review/Bring: Agenda Packet

Perry Jehlicka, Faculty Co-chair
Greg Bormann, VPAA Designee
VACANT — ADMIN Council - Dean
Dean LoNigro, ITS Management

Mike Wilmes, Learning Management Media Specialist (Ex-Officio)

Ken Sawicki, ITS Alternative Media Specialist
Greg Krynen, ITS Technical Trainer

Dr. Alex Parisky, IMC Representative

Dr. Scott Lee, AP&P

John Toth, Faculty Union

Sheri Langaman, Classified Union

Stephanie Mattila, Counseling

Jim Bowen, Career Tech Ed

Ken Lee, Rhetoric & Literacy

Dr. Ariel Tumbaga, Arts & Humanities
VACANT, Library

Mary Jacobs, Health & Safety Sciences
VACANT, Math, Science & Engineering
Kimberly Barker, Social & Behavioral Sciences
Dr. Rona Brynin, Senator At-Large

Dr. Ed Beyer, Senator At-Large

Items

Action

l. Call to Order

1 Approval of Agenda

1. Opening Comments
from Co-chairs

IV. Open Comments from
the Public

V.  Approval of Minutes

October 22, 2019 DETC Minutes (attachment)

VI. Discussion ltems

DE Coordinators Meeting Summary — Dr. Alex Parisky

Microsoft PowerPoint Cloud Captioning Preview — Dr. Alex Parisky
Faculty Web Pages — Dr. Ed Beyer

Goals — Perry Jehlicka

Distance Education Handbook — Perry Jehlicka

AVC Redesign — Perry Jehlicka

Faculty Certification — Perry Jehlicka

VII. Action Items Goals

W>OITMOOT > >

Distance Education Handbook

VIII. Adjournment

NEXT MEETING: 11/26/19




vANTELOPE
VALLEY

A

Distance Education and Technology Committee | Tuesday, November 12, 2019
Minutes 3:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m., L-201

Type of Meeting: Regular
Please Review/Bring: Agenda Packet

Perry Jehlicka, Faculty Co-chair

Greg Bormann, VPAA Designee

VACANT — ADMIN Council - Dean

Dean LoNigro, ITS Management

Mike Wilmes, Learning Management Media Specialist (Ex-Officio)
Ken Sawicki, ITS Alternative Media Specialist - ABSENT
Greg Krynen, ITS Technical Trainer

Dr. Alex Parisky, IMC Representative

Dr. Scott Lee, AP&P - ABSENT

John Toth, Faculty Union

Sheri Langaman, Classified Union

Stephanie Mattila, Counseling

Jim Bowen, Career Tech Ed

Ken Lee, Rhetoric & Literacy

Dr. Ariel Tumbaga, Arts & Humanities
VACANT, Library

Mary Jacobs, Health & Safety Sciences

Kenan Shahla, Math, Science & Engineering
Kimberly Barker, Social & Behavioral Sciences
Dr. Rona Brynin, Senator At-Large

Dr. Ed Beyer, Senator At-Large

Perla Chavez, ASO Representative

Guests: Morgan Bohnsack (ITS), Rich Caton (ITS)

Items Action
l. Call to Order 3:02 pm
Il.  Approval of Agenda Approved, unanimous
1. Opening Comments Perry J. provided more info on the OTC (Online Teachers Conference) — dates will be June
from Co-chairs 17-19, 2020. The registration fee will be $325 before 4/14, $375 after 4/14, and $425 at the

site. Perry also asked if the committee felt the need to hold our last meeting on 11/26, or if
we thought we could wait until the Spring semester. Greg B. said he could rearrange his
schedule, if the 11/26 meeting is needed.

IV. Open Comments from | The OTC was discussed in more detail, some faculty had questions. Dr. Beyer thanked

the Public everyone who supported and/or participated in the Can Innovate online conference. It was
very successful. A TechSmith update — Dean L. is still working on negotiating to get the
price down some. He’s hopeful that it will go to the December board. Dr. Beyer requested
a copy of the paperwork/proposal prior to board approval. Kenan S. talked about the online
Math classes being pulled from the schedule, and expressed his interest in being trained for
OEI compliance in order to be able to teach math online in the future. Perry is working
with VVan Ryder on getting the POCR sub-committee website created and some definitions
need to be updated.

V.  Approval of Minutes A. October 22, 2019 DETC Minutes (attachment) — approved, unanimous

VI. Discussion Items A. DE Coordinators Meeting Summary — Dr. Alex Parisky — Pronto may no longer be
supported this year.

Approved: Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting of February 11, 2020



vANTELOPE
VALLEY

A

B. Microsoft PowerPoint Cloud Captioning Preview — Dr. Alex Parisky — The MS
PowerPoint captioning feature was demonstrated while Dr. Parisky talked about the
DE Coordinators Meeting. This feature does not have recording capabilities at this
time, so for now it’s mainly used for live streaming lectures. It does not allow for
editing of the captions, and is only available for the Cloud PowerPoint version. Dr.
Beyer asked what the current level o acceptable accuracy was. Greg K. noted that
YouTube has gotten a lot more accurate than it used to be.

C. Faculty Web Pages — Dr. Ed Beyer — All faculty used to have their own individual

web pages with office location, hours and other info on them. Per ITS — this was

being worked on, but got set aside. Dr. Beyer thinks this is something that many
faculty might want back (echoed from other faculty in meeting). Rich C. will re-
visit this and meet with faculty/committee members to discuss further. How the
pages will be created also needs to be discussed, as not all faculty are comfortable
using Dreamweaver, and other HTML editing programs. Mike W. brought up past
storage issues/concerns both online and in Canvas. Dr. Beyer reminded the
committee that TechSmith has unlimited storage, so it may not be an issue, if the
college goes with TechSmith, Storage concerns can also be addressed by using
links in the online class, instead of the video/sound/picture file itself. A working
session will be set up to help educate faculty.

Goals - Perry Jehlicka — Changes from last meeting were approved.

Distance Education Handbook — Perry Jehlicka — Tabled for next meeting in Spring

AVC Redesign — Perry Jehlicka — AVC Online webpage needs to be a really good

tool for faculty and students. Perry will set a meeting with Rich & Dr. Beyer to

start talking about ideas.

G. Faculty Certification — Perry Jehlicka — Dr. Parisky is done with his POCR training
and is ready to start the POCR sub-committee. Dr. Brynen and Kim B. are also
interested in serving on this sub-committee. Perry will set up a meeting for all
interested.

mmo

VII. Action Items A. Goals — Approved.
B. Distance Education Handbook — Tabled for next meeting in Spring

VIIIl. Adjournment 4:.03 pm

NEXT MEETING: 11/26/19 | 11/26 meeting cancelled, next meeting will be in February.

Approved: Distance Education & Technology Committee Meeting of February 11, 2020



DETC GOALS FOR 2019-2020

. Develop an AVC online redesign plan by the end of Spring 2020 and a
corresponding implementation action plan in collaboration with ITS

. Develop a faculty certification program for the campus - The program will
help serve as a training platform for faculty who teach online.

. ]Develop a Peer Online Course Review (POCR) Sub Committee of DETC to
help prepare faculty for teaching online.\[l]



AVC Online

Distance Education Page

A

Started with

Getting

Canvas

:

Orientation
Videos

vV

Resource
Links

vV

Available
Technical

Support 7

Tips and

Tricks

.V

Online
Learning
Orientatio

Quest for

— Online

Success 7

—»{ OEIl Videos

Vv

Intro to
CVC-OEl

Vv

Types of

DE Classes

.V

(@ )
Live
] Class
Schedule
[ )
L, Can\{as
Login

Contact
Information

Frequently
Asked
Question

Technical
Support

:

Student
Resources

i

Best

——»| Practices for

Students

vV

Available

—»{ Technical

Support 7

Online

—» Learning

St rategie§7

??7?
Links

.V

Faculty
Resources

Best

——»{ Practices for

Faculty 7

OEl & AVC

—> Design

Rubrics 7

Canvas and
AP&P Guides

V

???
Links

09 Oct 2018




ANTELOPE
. VALLEY
COLLEGE

Distance Education Faculty Handbook



Table of Contents

Definition of Distance Education 2
AVC Definitions 2
AVC DETC Mission Statement 3
Distance Education at California Community College 3
Technical Support and Training 4
Weekend Technical Support 4
Professional Development 4
Guide To Using Canvas 5
Best Practices 6
Syllabus/Start-up Requirements Error! Bookmark not defined.
Orientation and Student Readiness 7
Distance Education Attendance Policy 8
Census Rosters 8
Drop Policy 8
Regular Effective Contact 9
Office Hours 10
Evaluation for Online Courses 11
End of Semester 12

Archive a Course 12

Export a Gradebook 12

Archive Faculty Emails 12
Appendix 13

Antelope Valley College Regular, Effective Contact Policy for DE Instruction 13

Recommended Course Design Process Review Process 16

AVC Rubric Recommended Design Rubric - 17

Updated 5/28/19 1



Definition of Distance Education

Title 5, Section 55000 defines Distance Education as a means of instruction in which the
instructor and student are separated by distance and interact through the assistance of
communication technology. Antelope Valley College currently offers Distance Education
courses.

AVC Definitions

Currently there are four categories of DE courses for AVC used by the Academic Policies
& Procedures committee of the Academic Senate. These are the categories and their
definitions ( AP&P Standards & Practices Handbook):

Online: a course designed for all instruction to take place online with no
requirement for students to meet on campus at any time during the term.

Hybrid: a course designed for all instruction to take place online. Students will be
required to meet on campus at least once for one of the following non-instructional
purposes: orientation, exam, quiz, or other non-instructional activity.

Blended: a course designed for instruction to take place both in the classroom and
online, where no less than 51% of instruction occurs online. Students will be
required to meet on campus and online during the term.

Remote Classroom Course: a course designed for instruction to take place in the

classroom allowing students to remotely attend the course. Students will be
required to meet at designated sites.

Updated 5/28/19 2



AVC DETC Mission Statement

The Distance Education and Technology Committee is charged with developing
guidelines for the delivery of distance education that will maximize student
opportunities for success. The committee makes recommendations to the
Academic Senate on issues related to distance education, examines distance
education practices for the purpose of developing best practice guidelines, and
acts as a resource for technical matters related to academic computing.

The Distance Education and Technology Committee's mission is two-fold: first, to
assist in the planning and implementation of the Technology Mediated Instruction
(TMI) used by instructors and staff in the preparation of educational materials; and
second, to provide guidance and recommendation in the pedagogical development
and technology in both traditional and distance education.

e Reviews new and revised Distance Education courses as part of the AP&P
course approval process

e Address problems with academic computing, including the Learning
Management System (LMS)

e Recommends the LMS for the College

e Works closely with the Academic Senate and IT Committee

Distance Education at California Community College

CVC/OEI

The California Virtual Campus — Online Education Initiative (CVC-OElI) is a collaborative
effort among California Community Colleges (CCCs) to ensure that significantly more
students are able to complete their educational goals by increasing both access to and
success in high-quality online courses.

The CVC-OEI is sponsored by the Foothill-De Anza Community College District as the
recipient of a $56.9 million five-year grant disbursed by the California Community College
Chancellor’'s Office (CCCCO). Composed of high-quality online courses, resources for
students, and technology, the CVC-OEI represents a comprehensive and collaborative
program that leverages effective practices and technology to significantly increase the
opportunity for higher education degree attainment in California.

Updated 5/28/19 3


https://cvc.edu/

Technical Support and Training

In an effort to maintain a high standard of quality both in technology and Distance
Education pedagogy, all faculty are recommended to participate in the following
professional development activities prior to teaching a Distance Education course
at AVC

e Instructors teaching Distance Education Courses, should have completed
training using the current (LMS), which currently is Canvas. This is offered
through the campus technical trainer.

e Training opportunities are offered throughout the year as a part of Faculty
Professional Development.Technical support is limited to AVCCD owned
equipment, software or contracted services.

e All Distance Education online/hybrid/blended courses must be delivered using
the course management system adopted by the College (as per Article XVII,
Section 6.0 of the faculty contract).

Weekend Technical Support

There is no AVC technical support for faculty on the weekends, holidays, or days in
which the AVC campus is closed. The same is true for student technical support.
Therefore, it is recommended that faculty schedule deadlines for major student
submissions (i.e. exams, research papers) for days and times that fall within the
business day, when there will be technical support from AVC. Currently our LMS
provides phone support 24 hours a day 7 days a week. It is recommended that
faculty provide this information to their students.

Professional Development

Professional Development for Faculty

@ONE--the Online Network of Educators-- a collaborative, system-wide network of
California Community College faculty, staff, and administrators, is coordinated by the
professional development team of the CCC California Virtual Campus-Online Education
Initiative (CVC-OEI). @ONE provides training and professional development to support
the effective use of digital tools and platforms to make California Community Colleges a
nationally recognized leader in online teaching and learning. Funding from the California
Community College Chancellor’s Office ensures that @ONE's offerings are provided for
free or a very low cost.

Updated 5/28/19 4


https://onlinenetworkofeducators.org/

Through its network of dedicated educators, @ONE provides professional development
that is technology-based but student-focused, with the goals of:

e Improving retention and success rates of California’s diverse online
community college student population.

e Improving the online learning experience for all students, including
students with disabilities, students with basic skills needs, and students
from underserved populations.

e Decreasing the cost of education for students by providing training and
support for colleges to leverage OEIl-procured tools and platforms.

e Ensuring all CCC faculty and staff possess the digital literacy skills to
inspire and prepare students for success in the digital age.

@ONE achieves these goals by providing a robust suite of professional development
offerings that can be accessed from anywhere at any time. Our offerings provide a variety
of learning pathways and are designed to foster learning for those who are new to using
technology, as well as our early adopters. A faculty or staff member who comes to @ONE
for professional development will have the ability to:

e Learn online and at your own pace any time of day with our self-paced
courses.

e Engage in community-rich, facilitated online courses, ranging from one to
twelve weeks.

e Beintroduced to new ideas and the latest educational trends in 30-60
minute webinars, led by your CCC peers and other subject matter experts.
Attend regional face-to-face workshops and mini-conferences.

Connect with peers across the state using the hashtag #CCCLearn.

Guide To Using Canvas

Designing Courses in Canvas

Instructors Guide to Canvas

District and Faculty Ownership as it pertains to Distance Learning

Updated 5/28/19 5


https://learn.canvas.net/courses/1233/pages/design-and-develop-your-online-course-in-canvas
https://community.canvaslms.com/docs/DOC-10460

a) If materials developed cooperatively between the District and Faculty
are marketed, the District and Faculty must have an agreement that
specifies distribution of royalties.

b) Instructional materials are the sole property of the Faculty member who
creates them (except when developed as work for hire or cooperatively
materials), and the District waives any claim to the ownership of them.

c) When Faculty member(s) independently obtains grant funding for the
production of work or invention and seeks District participation, the
District agrees ownership must clearly be clearly delineated in a written
agreement.

d) A Faculty member’s lecture may be recorded by the college and made
available to students during the semester of the class. The faculty
member shall own all copyrights or product rights to any recordings of
his/her lecture.

e) Creation of intellectual property during a paid sabbatical leave is the
property of the faculty member and the copyright to the work(s) is
owned by the faculty member.

**Collective Bargaining agreement**[1]

Best Practices

¢ Show Up and Teach

* Practice Proactive Course Management Strategies
* Establish Patterns of Course Activities

* Plan for the Unplanned

* Response Requested and Expected

 Think Before You Write

* Help Maintain Forward Progress

» Safe and Secure

* Quality Counts

Syllabus/Start-up Requirements

Updated 5/28/19



All faculty members must provide students with a course syllabus specific to the
course. AP&P has developed the Syllabus Content Checklist which includes
instructor contact information, course description, course objectives, course
learning outcomes, assigned texts and materials, grading policy, expectations for
classroom behavior, plagiarism policy and penalties, disability statement, and a
schedule of topics, reading, activities, and assignments.Link to Guidelines and
Required information for class Syllabus P. 115

The syllabus is a contract with the students in the class. A clear and detailed
syllabus will lead to fewer misunderstandings. Instructors often include detailed
descriptions of assignments and rubrics for evaluation. Faculty are strongly
encouraged to have the syllabus available to their students through the LMS.

Orientation and Student Readiness

Instructors are strongly encouraged to send an email to each student
detailing how to access their course, the expectations for an online student in
their specific course, and exactly what is required of each student to avoid
being dropped as a “no show”. Good practice suggests an email be sent
within two weeks prior to the start of the course.

It is also recommended to provide a guide or 1st assignment that will prepare the
student for the skills necessary to succeed in a distance learning class.Here is a
link that can help with student readiness for Distance Education. Quest For
Success

e  Students need to understand how to access the LMS through the college
administered authentication process (student ID related to password
protection).

e Password updates take place on a regular basis via password aging policy.

e  Students check-in to a Distance Education class via the AVC Online
attendance policy. If a student does not check-in to the course, the faculty
member may drop them and add additional students.

e Instructors are encouraged to clearly define plagiarism and cheating in their
course.

Updated 5/28/19 7


https://www.avc.edu/sites/default/files/administration/organizations/app/APP_Standards_and_Practices_HB_15-16.pdf
https://www.avc.edu/sites/default/files/administration/organizations/app/APP_Standards_and_Practices_HB_15-16.pdf
https://avc.instructure.com/courses/14715
https://avc.instructure.com/courses/14715

Distance Education Attendance Policy

Online Attendance Policy - Online students are subject to the same attendance
policy as are on-ground students. Refer to the Attendance Policy in the current
catalog. Student attendance in online courses is defined as “active participation” in
the course, as described in the instructor’s course syllabus. Active participation is
typically described as submitting an assignment (such as an exam, exercise, or
project element), participating in discussion forums, or by engagement in other
academic events that indicate an online presence within a specified time frame.

Online courses at minimum will have weekly mechanisms that will determine a
student’s active participation. Instructors will identify specific activities that must be
completed during the first week of the course. A student who fails to complete the
specific activities by the posted due date will be dropped as a NO SHOW unless
the student has made prior arrangements with the instructor.

Student participation will be monitored throughout the course by the instructor.
Students who fail to maintain active participation in the online course, as defined in
the course syllabus, may be dropped from the course.

Census Rosters

Census Rosters are mandatory for Distance Education classes just as they
are in face to face classes . All faculty members are required to submit census
rosters prior to census due date. The education code mandates completion of
census rosters to provide an accurate count of students. The college submits
census data to the Chancellor’s Office to determine state funding for the district.
Any student on a roster who has never attended an instructor’s class on-campus or
signed into your online class MUST be dropped before the Census date as
mandated by Title 5.The date of census may vary according to the start date and
length of each section.

Drop Policy

There is a federal requirement concerning the “last day of attendance” in online
classes that we must follow. We can no longer use the course statistics to
determine when a student has stopped participating in class. Instead, we have to
document when the student stopped being engaged in the work of the class (i.e.
submitting assignments, posting to discussion forums, etc.). If you have a student
who stops actively participating, but is logging into your class, you should try to
contact them to get them to participate. In this communication, remind them of the
Updated 5/28/19 8



attendance policy that states they must stay active in the course work or will be
dropped from the course. This has been precipitated by a number of schools
having to pay back considerable amounts of money to the government as a result
of student financial aid fraud. It is always good to refer to the online attendance
policy that is in the current AVC Catalog.

Regular Effective Contact

Faculty presence is an important factor in the success of online courses. Online
instructors must meet the requirements for regular effective contact. Student
retention and success rates are improved when there is active participation in the
class that fosters a sense of community. Faculty should be prepared to encourage
student interaction, build opportunities for learner-learner contact, and give
response and feedback in a timely manner (Appendix 1 - AVC Regular and
Effective Contact Policy).

Regular Effective Contact constitutes methods and frequency of interaction
between instructor and students when separated by distance and can be
accomplished in a number of ways (From the 2015-2016 AP&P Academic Policies

& Procedures p. 96): Regular Effective Contact in Canvas Courses

e Announcements: a communication tool often found in course management
systems.

e Blogs: a shared online journal where people can post entries about their
experiences and observations, often with hyperlinks provided by the writer.

e Chatrooms: an electronic space where multiple users communicate with each
other synchronously.

e Discussion Boards: electronic threaded discussions allowing multiple
participants follow the flow of discussion; also called discussion forums.

e Electronic Bulletin Boards: software that allows users to leave messages and
access information of general interest.

e E-mail: electronic mail delivered over a network.

e E-mail Lists: e-mail addresses that can be easily grouped for mailing to
multiple participants.

e FAQ (Frequently Asked Questions): a collection of the most often asked
guestions and answers.

e  Multimedia: a mixture of graphics, motion, sound, and text.

° Face-to-Face: required meetings with students on campus for traditional
classroom activities or assignments/tests.

e  Wiki: A collaborative website whose content can be edited by anyone who has
access to it.

Updated 5/28/19 9


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9eINEvijhjo

Office Hours

All full time faculty teaching Distance Education classes are required to maintain
regular campus office hours and are to participate in campus governance
responsibilities.

Faculty members teaching distance education courses may elect to fulfill their

office hour requirement for the distance education course in an alternative
distance mode away from the office. Virtual office hours may be held in
proportion to the professor’'s distance learning load so long as the
proportionate office hour is conducted in a synchronous mode and clearly
communicated in the syllabus.

“Regular effective contact,” as defined and identified in the Distance
Education Form Question 5A “Regular Effective Contact” from AP&P,
between instructor and students includes group or individual meetings,
orientation and review sessions, supplemental seminar or study sessions,
field trips, library workshops telephone contact, correspondence, voice mail,
email or other activities. Distance learning faculty shall use professional
discretion in selecting the appropriate method(s) and shall specify those
method(s) in the course description including the response time for
asynchronous communication.\[z]

Updated 5/28/19

10



Evaluation for Online Courses

The evaluation process for evaluating online courses is the same as face to face
classes. The school does not differentiate from Distance Education Classes and
face to face.

\Faculty teaching online courses or performing other faculty job duties online shall
provide an orientation to the evaluators if necessary on how to access the site(s)
and various methods of student interaction such as e-mail and chat rooms. Access
shall be granted to the evaluators for five working days and the evaluee will make
arrangements for access. Should additional observations be desired or necessary,
the evaluee will make arrangements for access as appropriate[3].

° Any unit member who elects to teach an online class must agree to have his
or her competency to teach distance education courses evaluated by the
respective Dean and students during their first semester.

° Instructors teaching distance education courses shall be evaluated

° Anyone who evaluates an online course shall have experience or training in
online delivery or evaluation.

° For probationary faculty, online course evaluation shall be part of the regular
tenure evaluation process. For tenured and adjunct faculty, this evaluation
will not restart the agreed -upon 3 year evaluation process.

**Collective Bargaining agreement**

Updated 5/28/19 11



End of Semester

Archive a Course

After the semester ends and grades are turned in, faculty will want to archive
course(s). ITS is no longer archiving course shells, and will purge all shells older
than the past two full semesters. Faculty may choose to archive a course(s) every
week or two during the semester and download it to a safe place.

Export a Gradebook

Once students are deleted from the Canvas server, neither their work nor their
grades will appear in an archived course. This is why faculty should download their
gradebook separately. Like the archive, download the gradebook to a safe place. In
addition, like the archive, faculty may choose to do this every week or so during the
semester. We are limited on space in Canvas and instructors need to keep a copy
of the grade just as you do with face to face courses. Canvas Community Gradebook
Information

Archive Faculty Emails

If faculty decide not to use the Messages tool in Canvas, they are advised to
archive any emails from their students. Archiving a Canvas course does not archive
student emails that are sent to and from faculty AVC email accounts; unless faculty
use the Messages (Canvas internal email). Archiving Emails in Canvas

This handbook is subject to change as new technologies emerge and new
decisions are made.

Updated 5/28/19 12


https://community.canvaslms.com/docs/DOC-10460
https://community.canvaslms.com/docs/DOC-10460
https://community.canvaslms.com/docs/DOC-12700-4152719693

Appendix

Antelope Valley College Regular, Effective Contact Policy for Online

Instruction

Background

1.1.

1.2.

In hybrid or fully online courses, ensuring Regular Effective
Instructor/Student Contact guarantees that the student receives the benefit of
the instructor’s presence in the learning environment both as a provider of
instructional information and as a facilitator of student learning.

Title 5 regulations do not make a distinction between regular and distance
education courses beyond the need to have a separate curriculum approval
process and the need to ensure regular effective contact. The guidelines do
say that quality assurances within the regulations apply to all distance
education (hereafter, DE) courses, which include hybrid courses. The DE
Guidelines require colleges to develop a policy regarding regular effective
contact that addresses “the type and frequency of interaction appropriate to
each DE course/section or session.”

Relevant Ed Code

2.1.

2.2.

Ed Code 855202. Course Quality Standards. The same standards of course
quality shall be applied to any portion of a course conducted through
distance education as are applied to traditional classroom courses, in regard
to the course quality judgment made pursuant to the requirements of
855002, and in regard to any local course quality determination or review
process. Determinations and judgments about the quality of distance
education under the course quality standards shall be made with the full
involvement of faculty in accordance with the provisions of subchapter 2
(commencing with 853200) of chapter 2. NOTE: Authority cited: 866700 and
870901, Education Code. References: §70901 and 870902, Education Code.

Ed Code 855204. Instructor Contact. In addition to the requirements of
855002 and any locally established requirements applicable to all courses,
district-governing boards shall ensure that:

2.2.1.  Any portion of a course conducted through distance education
includes regular effective contact between instructor and students,
through group or individual meetings, orientation and review
sessions, supplemental seminar or study sessions, field trips, library
workshops, telephone contact, correspondence, voice mail, e-mail,
or other activities. Regular effective contact is an academic and

Updated 5/28/19 13



professional matter pursuant to 853200 et seq.

2.2.2.  Any portion of a course provided through distance education is
conducted consistent with guidelines issued by the Chancellor
pursuant to 8409 of the Procedures and Standing Orders of the
Board of Governors. NOTE: Authority cited: 866700 and §70901,
Education Code. Reference: §70901 and §70902, Education Code.

3. AVC Distance Education

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

All distance education courses at AVC, whether hybrid or fully online, will
include regular effective contact as described in this section.

Initiated interaction: Instructors will regularly initiate interaction with
students to determine that they are accessing and comprehending course
material and that they are participating regularly in the activities in the
course. Opportunities that relate to the content of the course should include
those in which students interact with instructors, instructors to interact with
students, and students to interact with each other. Providing students with an
open-ended question forum, although participation may be required, does
not constitute the entirety of effective instructor initiated interaction. In
addition to open ended question forums, utilizing LMS blogs, journals, AVC
email, and collaboration chat tools are appropriate to engage instructor and
student interaction. Furthermore, implementing web 2.0 tools into course
activities (ie. VoiceThread, Twitter, Facebook, etc.) are also appropriate tools
to create interaction. Some web 2.0 tools can be brought into the LMS and
some can be linked from the LMS. Instructor prepared content (written,
recorded, broadcast, etc.) combined with other course materials, creates the
“virtual equivalent” of the face-to-face class and must be included in your
course.

Frequency: Distance Education courses are considered the “virtual
equivalent” to face-to-face courses. Therefore, the frequency of the contact
will be at least the same as would be established in a regular, face-to-face
course. At the very least, the number of instructor contact hours per week
that would be available for face-to-face students, will also be available, in
asynchronous and/or synchronous mode, with students in the DE format. A
class that meets three hours a week would require three hours of faculty
communication time. Faculty office hours are not included as fulfilling the
regular effective contact requirement and are a separate requirement. Given
the nature of asynchronous instructional methodologies, contact shall be
distributed in a manner that will ensure that regular contact is maintained
over the course of a week and should occur as often as is appropriate for the
course.

Establishing expectations and managing unexpected instructor
absence: Instructor availability for any synchronous class meeting times will

Updated 5/28/19 14



be posted in the syllabus and/or other course documents that are made
available for students when the course officially opens each semester. If the
instructor must be out of contact for any reason associated with a leave, the
instructor must follow standard procedures for such leave as delineated in
the faculty collective bargaining agreement and applicable administrative
policies. Students will be notified of the instructor’'s absence or leave at the
earliest opportunity.

3.5. Type of Contact: In all AVC DE courses, instructors should use a mix of
resources to initiate and maintain contact with students. Acceptable
resources include, but are not limited to the following:

Updated 5/28/19

Threaded discussion forums;

AVC email and voicemail;

Weekly announcements;

Field trips, seminars, or other in-person activities;
Timely feedback for student work.

15



Recommended Course Design ProcessReview Process

Craatz
Draft
Course

Submit
Coursefor
Diesign Review

Review
Section A

Online Course Design
Review Process

|

Correct
Deficiencies

|

Correct
Deficiencies

Correct
Deficiencies

|

Correct
Deficiencies

Review for
Extemal Tools

N
Section A
Complete?

¥

Section A: Content Presentation
Section B: Interaction
Section C: Assessment

Section O: Accessibility

Werify
Vendor
Compliance

Updated 5/28/19

Vendar
Compliant?

Dresign
Review End
Complete

Remove Tool
and
Communicate
With Vendor

Beyer: 21 Sep 2017

16



AVC Rubric Recommended Design Rubric -

AVC Online Course Rubric

Section A — Content Presentation . | Poo
Good | Fair ;
1. Course Learning Outcomes are included and easy to access
2. Objectives are included for each learning module
3. Course design includes how-to directions (i.e. navigate the course, contact the
professor, submit assignments, etc.)
4. Course navigation is clear and intuitive
5. Content is chunked into distinct learning units or modules
6. Access to course content and resources is clear and streamlined
7. Course includes a variety of modalities (text, audio, video, graphics)
8. Institutional policies are included and easy to access
9. Links to student services are included and easy to access
Section B — Interaction Good | Fair :’oo
1. Instructor contact information is included and easily available
2. Instructor has a method or plan to initiate contact prior to or on the first day of class
3. Instructor has a method or plan to initiate weekly announcements
4. Clear guidelines for communication with instructor are included and easily available.
5. Clear guidelines are provided that explain required levels of student participation
6. Multiple communication methods are used to ensure regular and effective contact
7. Students have a method to initiate interaction directly with the instructor
8. Students have a method to initiate interaction directly with other students
9. Course technology support links are included and easily accessed
Section C — Assessment Good | Eair :’oo
1. Assessments appear appropriate to the course content
Updated 5/28/19 17




2. Multiple assessments are administered throughout the course
3. Assessments contain clear instructions on how to complete the assessment
4. Students have opportunities for self-assessment
Section D — Accessibility Good | Eair :’oo
1. Content pages and files consistently use heading styles
2. Lists are created using the bullet or numbered list tool
3. Underlines are used only to indicate active links
4. Tables contain header cells and allow screen readers to read in correct order
5. There is sufficient color contrast between the foreground and background
6. Images contain alt text that is less than 120 characters
7. Presentation slides each have a unique title
8. Presentation graphics have alt text
9. Videos are accurately closed captioned
10. Live broadcasts provide means for displaying closed captions
11. Multi-Media is not set to auto-play
12. PDFs pass the Adobe Accessibility Check with no substantial errors
13. Multimedia does not blink or strobe
Updated 5/28/19 18




	11-12-19 DETC Agenda
	11-12-19 DETC Draft Minutes
	11-22-19 DETC Goals
	9-10-19 DETC AVC Online
	Distance Ed Web Page.vsdx
	Page-1


	11-22-19 DETC Handbook
	Definition of Distance Education
	AVC Definitions
	AVC DETC Mission Statement
	Distance Education at California Community College
	Technical Support and Training
	Weekend Technical Support
	Professional Development
	Guide To Using Canvas
	Best Practices
	Syllabus/Start-up Requirements
	Orientation and Student Readiness
	Distance Education Attendance Policy
	Census Rosters
	Drop Policy
	Regular Effective Contact
	Office Hours
	Evaluation for Online Courses
	End of Semester
	Archive a Course
	Export a Gradebook
	Archive Faculty Emails

	Appendix
	Antelope Valley College Regular, Effective Contact Policy for Online Instruction
	Recommended Course Design ProcessReview Process
	AVC Rubric Recommended Design Rubric -

	Poor
	Section A – Content Presentation
	Fair
	Good
	Poor
	Section B – Interaction
	Fair
	Good
	Poor
	Section C – Assessment
	Fair
	Good
	Poor
	Section D – Accessibility
	Fair
	Good


